QUESTIONS PRESENTED 

1. Whether the trial judge, rather than the jury, is vested with the authority under West 
Virginia Code § 61-2-14a(b)(3) and (4), to detennine those facts that reduce the minimum 
and maximum penalty oflife imprisonment with and without mercy, for a person convicted 
of kidnapping? 

2. Whether, in the absence of a constitutional requirement that special interrogatories be 
submitted to a jury in a kidnapping case, a trial court exceeds its legitimate authority and 
abuses its discretion in submitting special interrogatories for the jury's determination of 
whether the victim was returned unhanned, and if so, at what juncture? 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On April 6, 2018, Jefferson County Sheriff's Deputy R. M. Rowland ("Rowland"), filed a 

Criminal Complaint in the Magistrate Court of Jefferson County, West Virginia, charging 

Respondent Daniel Scott Scruggs ("Respondent") with kidnapping, strangulation, and assault 

during the commission of, or attempt to commit, a felony. (App. 36.) Deputy Rowland reported 

that on March 22, 2018, Jessica Beachley ("Beachley"), the victim, met Respondent, her ex-

boyfriend, at Longshots Billiards ("Longshots") in Charles Town, Jefferson County, West 

Virginia. (App. 37.) After noticing Respondent was in a "mood," Beachley became frightened and 

asked her friend to ensure she left by herself. (App. 37.) Respondent made subtle hints that he 

wanted to leave but Beachley feared leaving with him. (App. 37.) Finally, Respondent decided to 

leave and asked Beachley for a hug. (App. 37.) When Beachley stood, Respondent grabbed her 

phone and ran out the door. (App. 37.) Beachley ran after Respondent, found him in his vehicle, 

and got into his vehicle to retrieve her cell phone when Respondent drove off against her will. 

(App.37.) 

Beachley begged Respondent to take her back to Longshots but he refused and yelled at 

Beachley, telling her that they belonged together. (App. 37.) To prevent the events from escalating, 

Beachley agreed with Respondent, which aggravated him even more. (App. 37.) Respondent then 
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pulled over, parked his vehicle, yelled at Beachley, and grew more irate when she agreed with him. 

(App. 37.) Respondent removed his seatbelt, pinned Beachley against the passenger door, and 

wrapped his hand around her throat as Beachley feared Respondent was going to choke her like 

he had before. (App. 37.) She struggled to breathe, begging and crying for Respondent to stop. 

(App. 37.) Respondent however, did not let go but loosened his grip around her neck, allowing 

Beachley to tum her head, bite Respondent's arm, and attempt to flee. (App. 37-38.) Respondent 

then began biting Beachley's fingers on her right hand, loosened his grip around her neck, and 

Beachley begged him to stop and called him "babe." (App. 38.) Respondent became irate again 

and directed Beachley not to call him "babe" again. (App. 38.) Respondent bit Beachley' s thumb 

so hard she thought he would bite it off. (App. 38.) Beachley kicked Respondent and he then bit 

her right leg. (App. 38.) At some point during the altercation, Beachley's left ear was cut open. 

(App.38.) 

Respondent started driving again and Beachley continued to ask Respondent to take her 

home but he refused, telling her he did not know what to do with her because she could not be 

trusted. (App. 38.) As they were driving, Beachley asked Respondent to stop and buy cigarettes 

which he did, stopping at an Exxon in Loudon County, Virginia. (App. 38.) Beachley attempted 

to follow Respondent into the store but he ordered her to return to the vehicle. (App. 38.) After 

buying cigarettes, Respondent continued to drive around and finally took her home, near 

Knoxville, Maryland at six in the morning. (App. 38.) Beachley then went to the hospital for 

treatment of the injuries caused by Respondent. (App. 38.) 

On September 19, 2018, the Grand Jury of Jefferson County, West Virginia, indicted 

Respondent for kidnapping (Count One) in violation of W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a(a)(2), 

strangulation (Count Two) in violation of W.Va. Code § 61-2-9d(b), malicious assault (Counts 
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Three - Six) in violation of W.Va. Code § 61-2-9(a), domestic assault (Count Seven) in violation 

of W.Va. Code § 61-2-9(b), and domestic battery (Count Eight) in violation of W.Va. Code § 61-

2-28(a). (App. 30-34.) 

On January 2, 2019, the Circuit Court held a hearing to determine whether special 

interrogatories needed to be submitted to the jury regarding the kidnapping charge as stated in 

Count One of the Indictment (App. 61-80.) Respondent's attorney advised that he was not 

prepared to respond. (App. 63.) The Circuit Court then stated that the minimum sentence under 

W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a is ten to thirty years, but that under subsection (b)(4), the issue is whether 

the Circuit Court or the jury determines whether a victim was returned alive without bodily harm 

and without ransom. (App. 64---{j5.) The State asserted that such decisions are to be made by the 

Court and not the jury pursuant to this Court's holding in State v. Haught, 218 W.Va. 462, 624 

S.E.2d 899 (2005). (App. 65.) The State took the position that life imprisonment is the statutory 

maximum and minimum sentence and that the exceptions as stated in W.Va. Code § 61-2-

14a(b)(3) and (4) are to be determined by the Court. (App. 66.) The Circuit Court indicated that it 

would take such matters under advisement and released Respondent on bond during this time. 

(App.76.) 

The Circuit Court entered its Order on January 23, 2018, certifying two questions to this 

Court. (App. 11-29.) The Circuit Court first asked whether a ''jury must decide those facts that in 

all kidnapping cases must result in a lesser (or greater) sentence," and answered the question 

affirmatively. (App. 13.) The court explained that W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a provides a three tiered 

penalty scheme. The first tier is the minimum sentence of ten to thirty years pursuant to W.Va. 

Code § 61-2-14a(b)(3). (App. 13.) The second or middle tier is a penalty of twenty to fifty years, 

and the third and top tier is life imprisonment. (App. 13-14.) Pursuant to this Court's precedent, 
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the Circuit Court opined that the sentencing scheme of W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a allows for the 

reduction of the statutory maximum and enhancement of the statutory minimum sentences, by 

facts which must be determined by the jury. (App. 16.) The Circuit Court opined that to enable the 

jury to make such factual findings, special interrogatories must be submitted to the jury after a 

kidnapping conviction is rendered. (App. 19-21.) 

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

Regarding Certified Question No.1, this Court must answer in the affirmative and find 

that a trial judge, rather than the jury, is vested with the authority under W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a 

to determine those facts under subsections (b)(3) and (4) that serve to reduce the minimum and 

maximum penalty oflife imprisonment with and without mercy. The statute unambiguously states 

in subsection (a) that the default sentence is life imprisonment without mercy. Likewise, the 

legislative intent of W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a is to protect a victim's life and liberty. This purpose 

is effectuated by obviating, to some degree, the impetus to commit the crime of kidnapping by 

reading the statute in its plain language to establish a default sentence of life imprisonment. 

In State v. Farmer, 193 W.Va. 84, 85,454 S.E.2d 378,379 (1994), this Court held that the 

trial judge's factual findings as to bodily injury and receipt of any advantage are for the sole 

purpose of sentencing and therefore, are neither elements of the crime of kidnapping, nor result in 

the denial of the constitutional right to trial by jury. In State v. Haught, 218 W.Va. 462, 624 S.E.2d 

899 (2005), this Court, following precedent of the Supreme Court of the United States ("Supreme 

Court") in Blakely v. Washington, 542 U.S. 296 (2004), held that W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a "does 

not provide for the enhancement of a defendant's sentence beyond the statutory maximum based 

on additional facts found by the trial judge in violation of the constitutional right to a trial by jury 

" 
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Accordingly, the trial judge, pursuant to subsections (b)(3) and (4), may serve to reduce 

the maximum and minimum penalty under the kidnapping statute, and not enhance it, thereby 

failing to implicate the holding in Alleyne v. United States, 570 U.S. 99 (2013), that any fact that 

increases the penalty for a crime is an element that must be presented to the jury beyond a 

reasonable doubt. Alleyne therefore does not limit this Court's decisions in Farmer or Haught, and 

the facts under subsection (b)(3) and (4) are properly determined by the trial judge rather than the 

jury. 

Respecting Certified Question No.2, this Court must answer the question in the affirmative 

and find pursuant to State v. Dilliner, 212 W.Va. 135, 136,569 S.E.2d 211,212 (2002), that a trial 

court exceeds its authority and abuses its discretion when it submits special interrogatories to the 

jury when not authorized by statute. Although W.Va. Code § 56-6-5 generally authorizes special 

interrogatories to be submitted to a jury, this statute is applied only in the civil context. Special 

interrogatories may coerce a guilty verdict or destroy the jury's ability to deliberate free of 

extraneous influences. Even if these fears may be eliminated, it remains that the facts presented in 

W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a(b)(3) and (4) are neither elements of the crime nor need to be submitted 

to the jury, and are properly determined by the trial judge at sentencing. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

This Court has scheduled this matter for oral argument pursuant to Rule 20 of the Rules of 

Appellate Procedure for September 2019. 
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ARGUMENT 

1. Whether the trial judge, rather than the jury, is vested with the authority under West 
Virginia Code § 61-2-14a(b)(3) and (4), to determine those facts that reduce the 
minimum and maximum penalty of life imprisonment with and without mercy, for a 
person convicted of kidnapping? 

The Circuit Court phrased Question No. 1 as "Whether a jury must decide those facts that 

in all kidnapping cases must result in a lesser (or greater) sentence?" and answered the question 

affirmatively. (App. 13.) The Circuit Court's formulation of Certified Question No.1, and its 

answer thereto, appears to flow from a misreading of Alleyne v. United States, 570 U.S. 99 (2013), 

State v. Farmer, 193 W.Va. 84, 85, 454 S.E.2d 378, 379 (1994), State v. Haught, 218 W.Va. 462, 

624 S.E.2d 899 (2005), and West Virginia Code § 61-2-14a. In light ofthese decisions and statute, 

the more appropriate question to be considered is whether the trial judge, rather than the jury, is 

vested with the authority under West Virginia Code § 61-2-14a(b)(3) and (4), to determine those 

facts that reduce the minimum and maximum penalty oflife imprisonment with and without mercy, 

for a person convicted of kidnapping? The answer is yes. 

A. United States Supreme Court Precedent. 

In a line of cases beginning with Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466 (2000), the Supreme 

Court has outlined when facts must be decided by a jury and when they may be decided by the 

court. In Apprendi, the Supreme Court held that " [0 ]ther than the fact of a prior conviction, any 

fact that increases the penalty for a crime beyond the prescribed statutory maximum must be 

submitted to ajury, and proved beyond a reasonable doubt. Apprendi, 530 U.S. at 489. InApprendi, 

after the defendant pled guilty to two firearms offenses carrying maximum sentences of ten years 

each, the trial court increased the sentence for one of the offenses to twelve years based on its 

finding that the crime was motivated by racial bias. Apprendi, 530 U.S. at 470-71. The Supreme 

Court reversed the enhanced sentence and found that the defendant had a constitutional right to 
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have the jury find such bias on the basis of proof beyond a reasonable doubt. Apprendi, 530 U.S. 

at 474-77. The Supreme Court found that any "facts that increase the prescribed range of penalties 

to which a criminal defendant is exposed" are elements of a crime and the Sixth Amendment 

guarantees defendants the right to have a jury find those facts beyond a reasonable doubt. 

Apprendi, 530 U.S. at 490. The Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments entitle a criminal defendant to 

"a jury determination that [he] is guilty of every element of the crime with which he is charged, 

beyond a reasonable doubt." United States v. Gaudin, 515 U.S. 506, 510 (1995). 

In Harris v. United States, 536 U.S. 545 (2002), the defendant was indicted for selling 

illegal narcotics at his pawnshop with an unconcealed semiautomatic pistol in violation of 18 

U.S.C. § 924(c)(1)(A), which provides for a five year minimum sentence or if the firearm is 

brandished, a seven year minimum sentence. At sentencing, the district court found that the 

defendant had brandished the firearm and sentenced him to the seven year minimum sentence. 

Harris, 536 U.S. at 545. The Supreme Court affirmed the district court's sentence, fmding that 

pursuant to the holding in McMillan v. Pennsylvania, 477 U.S. 79 (1986), the finding that the 

defendant brandished a fireann was a sentencing factor that could be decided by the court. Harris, 

536 U.S. at 568. The Supreme Court noted that "it is beyond dispute that the judge's choice of 

sentences within the authorized range may be influenced by facts not considered by the jury, a 

factual finding's practical effect cannot by itself control the constitutional analysis." Harris, 536 

U.S. at 566. "Within the range authorized by the jury's verdict, however, the political system may 

channel judicial discretion-and rely upon judicial expertise-by requiring defendants to serve 

minimum terms after judges make certain factual findings." Harris, 536 U.S. at 567. 

Two years later in Blakely v. Washington, 543 U.S. 294, 303 (2004), the Supreme Court 

defined the phrase "statutory maximum" for Apprendi purposes as "the maximum sentence a judge 
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may impose solely on the basis of the facts reflected in the jury verdict or admitted by the 

defendant." The statutory maximum is "the maximum sentence a judge may impose solely on the 

basis of the facts reflected in thejury verdict or admitted by the defendant." Blakely, 542 U.S. at 

303. It is not however, the "maximum sentence a judge may impose after finding additional facts, 

but the maximum he may impose without any additional findings." Blakely, 542 U.S. at 303-04. 

In Blakely, the defendant pled guilty to second-degree kidnapping involving domestic violence 

and use of a firearm. Blakely, 542 U.S. at 298-99. In Washington, second-degree kidnapping was 

a Class B felony which carried a maximum term of imprisonment often years. Blakely, 542 U.S. 

at 299. Under the Washington Sentencing Reform Act, the defendant faced a standard range of 49 

to 53 months of imprisonment. Id. The court however, imposed an exceptional sentence of 90 

months, on the ground that the defendant acted with deliberate cruelty, a statutorily enumerated 

ground for departure in domestic violence cases. Blakely, 542 U.S. a 300. The Supreme Court 

reversed finding that the court could not have imposed the 90-month sentence based solely on the 

facts admitted in the guilty plea. Blakely, 542 U.S. at 296, 308. 

Similarly, the statutory maximum sentence under the West Virginia kidnapping statute is 

life imprisonment as that is the maximum sentence the trial judge may impose based solely on the 

facts reflected in the jury verdict. Applying the rules set forth in Apprendi and Blakely, the trial 

judge may not impose a sentence greater than the statutory maximum of life imprisonment. 

On January 14, 2013, the Supreme Court overturned its decision in Harris, noting that the 

"distinction between facts that increase the statutory maximum and facts that increase only the 

mandatory minimum" are inconsistent with Apprendi. Alleyne, 570 U.S. at 103. The Alleyne Court 

held that "[a]ny fact that, by law, increases the penalty for a crime is an 'element' that must be 

submitted to the jury and found beyond a reasonable doubt." Id. The Supreme Court reasoned that 
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because "mandatory minimum sentences increase the penalty for a crime" then it follows that "any 

fact that increases the mandatory minimum is an 'element' that must be submitted to the jury." Id. 

The Supreme Court noted that Apprendi defined a fact as an element of the offense that must be 

submitted to the jury. Alleyne, 570 U.S. at 108. In overturning Harris, the Alleyne Court noted that 

the Apprendi definition of elements included "not only facts that increase the ceiling, but also those 

that increase the floor." Id. 

The West Virginia kidnapping statute, W.Va. Code § 6l-2-l4a, has a mandatory minimum 

sentence of life imprisonment. Under subsection (b)(1), the jury may, in their discretion, 

recommend mercy. W.Va. Code § 6l-2-l4a(b)(1). Given that both the mandatory maximum and 

minimum sentence is life imprisonment, the statute does not run afoul of the Alleyne holding 

because no fact can increase the minimum sentence. The exceptions to the mandatory sentence 

serve to reduce, not enhance, the maximum and minimum penalty and therefore, do not implicate 

the holdings in Apprendi, Blakely, or Alleyne. 

B. West Virginia Code § 61-2-14a. 

Respondent is charged with violating W.Va. Code § 6l-2-14a, which provides: 

(a) Any person who unlawfully takes custody of, conceals, confines or restrains 
another person against his or her will by means of force, threat of force, duress, 
fraud, deceit, inveiglement, misrepresentation or enticement with the intent: 

(1) To hold another person for ransom, reward or concession; 

(2) To transport another person with the intent to inflict bodily injury or to 
terrorize the victim or another person; or 

(3) To use another person as a shield or hostage, is guilty of a felony and, upon 
conviction shall be punished by confinement by the Division of Corrections 
for life, and, notwithstanding the provisions of article twelve, chapter sixty
two of this code, is not eligible for parole. 
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Subsection (b) provides exceptions to the life imprisonment penalty: 

(1) A jury may, in their discretion, recommend mercy, and if the 
recommendation is added to their verdict, the person is eligible for parole 
in accordance with the provision of article twelve, chapter sixty-two of this 
code; 

(2) If the person pleads guilty, the court may, in its discretion, provide that the 
person is eligible for parole in accordance with the provisions of article 
twelve, chapter sixty-two of this code and, if the court so provides, the 
person is eligible for parole in accordance with the provisions of said article 
in the same manner and with like effect as if the person had been found 
guilty by the verdict of a jury and the jury had recommended mercy; 

(3) In all cases where the person against whom the offense is committed is 
returned, or is permitted to return, alive, without bodily harm having been 
inflicted upon him, but after ransom, money or other thing, or any 
concession or advantage of any sort has been paid or yielded, the 
punishment shall be confinement by the Division of Corrections for a 
definite term of years not less than twenty nor more than fifty; or 

(4) In all cases where the person against whom the offense is committed is 
returned, or is permitted to return, alive, without bodily harm having been 
inflicted upon him or her, but without ransom, money or other thing, or any 
concession or advantage of any sort having been paid or yielded, the 
punishment shall be confinement by the Division of Corrections for a 
definite term of years not less than ten nor more than thirty. 

W.Va. Code 61-2-14a (2017). 

C. West Virginia Precedent. 

In Syllabus Point 1 of State v. Farmer, 193 W.Va. 84,85,454 S.E.2d 378,379 (1994), this 

Court held that W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a, provides the standard for the trial judge to use when 

imposing sentence: 

[A] trial judge, for purpose of imposing a sentence on a defendant for a term of 
years not less than twenty or a sentence for a term of years not less than ten, has the 
discretion to make findings as to whether a defendant inflicted bodily harm on a 
victim and as to whether ransom, money, or any other concession has been paid or 
yielded for the return of the victim. Because the findings by the trial judge are made 
solely for the purpose of determining the sentence to be imposed on a defendant 
and are not elements of the crime of kidnapping, West Virginia Constitution art. 
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III, §§ 10 and 14, relating to a defendant's due process rights and right to a trial by 
jury, are not violated. 

In 2005, this Court considered whether W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a violated the Supreme Court 

precedent established in Apprendi, Harris, and Blakely. See State v. Haught, 218 W.Va. 462, 624 

S.E.2d 899 (2005). In Haught, this Court held that the kidnapping statute "does not provide for the 

enhancement of a defendant's sentence beyond the statutory maximum based on additional facts 

found by the trial judge in violation of the constitutional right to a trial by jury as interpreted by 

the United States Supreme Court in Blakely v. Washington, 542 U.S. 296 (2004)." In Haught, the 

defendant argued-as the Circuit Court in the instant case has decided in its Order certifying 

questions-that to find that W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a is a sentence reduction statute is to elevate 

form over substance. Haught, 218 W.Va. at 466,624 S.E.2d at 903. The Haught Court found that 

in light of Blakely, and pursuant to W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a, "any additional findings of fact made 

by the trial judge can only operate under the statute to reduce and not enhance a defendant's 

sentence." Haught, 218 W.Va. at 467,624 S.E.2d at 904 (emphasis added). 

The District Court for the Southern District of West Virginia has also considered whether 

W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a requires a jury to make factual findings beyond a reasonable doubt under 

subsections (b)(3) and (4). In Rabb v. Ballard, No. 2:09-cv-00159, 2011 WL 1299359, at *1 (S.D. 

W.Va. Mar. 31, 2011), the District Court declined to adopt the Magistrate Judge's fmdings and 

recommendations that the court grant habeas relief and found that this Court's decisions should be 

determined not by "Supreme Court precedent at the conclusion of state habeas proceedings, but 

rather the shape of things on the date when direct appellate review terminated," October 12, 1999, 

which pre-dated the above-holdings. 

Subsequently, the District Court, earlier this year in Shultz v. Terry, No. 2:18-cv-00899, 

2019 WL 1398071, at *2 (S.D. W.Va. Mar. 28, 2019), specifically held that life without parole is 
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"the default mandatory sentence" under W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a. The District Court adopted the 

Magistrate Judge's finding that "[t]he fact that the statute ... grants judges the authority to depart 

from th[ e 1 mandatory sentence does not implicate the prohibition announced in Alleyne v. United 

States, 570 U.S. 99 (2013)] as the statute does not allow judicial fact-finding to increase the 

mandatory minimum or maximum penalty. Id. 

Accordingly, this Court's precedence in Farmer and Haught makes clear that the facts set 

forth in W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a(b)(3) and (4) are sentencing factors and not elements ofthe crime 

of kidnapping, that serve to reduce rather than enhance the life imprisonment sentence, which are 

to be determined by the trial judge. 

D. Statutory Interpretation. 

a. W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a is unambiguous. 

The findings in Haught and Shultz are consistent with the plain language of W.Va. Code § 

61-2-14a, which explicitly states that any person convicted of kidnapping "shall be punished by 

confinement by the Division of Corrections for life, and, ... is not eligible for parole." Pursuant 

to the holdings in Apprendi and Blakely, the statutory minimum and maximum sentence under 

W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a therefore, is life imprisonment without mercy. The Court's first task in 

statutory interpretation is to "determine whether the language at issue is ambiguous." Board of 

Trs. of Firemen's Pension & Relief Fund v. City of Fairmont, 215 W.Va. 366, 370, 599 S.E.2d 

789, 793 (2004). "Where the language of a statute is clear and without ambiguity the plain meaning 

is to be accepted without resorting to the rules of interpretation." Syl. pt. 2, State v. Elder, 152 

W.Va. 571, 165 S.E.2d 108, 109 (1968). A statute is considered ambiguous when it is "susceptible 

of two more constructions or of such doubtful or obscure meaning that reasonable minds might be 
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uncertain or disagree as to its meaning." Firemen's Pension & Relief Fund, 215 W.Va. at 370.599 

S.E.2d 793. 

The Circuit Court opines that W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a, has a tiered sentencing penalty with 

a minimum sentence of ten to twenty years if the victim is returned without any bodily harm prior 

to receiving any advantage, and a maximum sentence of life imprisonment. (App. 13-14.) The 

intennediate tier is twenty to fifty years when a kidnapper returns or pennits the victim to be 

returned without bodily harm after obtaining some advantage. (App. 13.) Contrary to the Circuit 

Court's opinion, the West Virginia kidnapping statute is unambiguous and clearly defines the 

default penalty as life imprisonment without mercy. In Haught, this Court held that it is "perfectly 

reasonable to construe W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a as a statute that provides for the possible reduction 

of a defendant's sentence based on additional findings by the trial judge and not one that permits 

the enhancement ofa defendant's sentence." Haught, 218 W.va. at 467,624 S.E.2d at 904. 

b. The legislative intent of W.Va. Code § 61-2-14a is to protect the victim's 
life and liberty.

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