CERTIFIED QUESTIONS PRESENTED 

1. Whether the trial Judge, rather than the jury, is vested with the authority under West Virginia 
Code Section 61-2-14a (b) (3) and (4), to determine those facts that reduce the minimum and 
maximum penalty of life imprisonment with and without mercy, for a person convicted of 
kidnapping? 

2. Whether, in the absence of a constitutional requirement that special interrogatories be 
submitted to a jury in a kidnapping case, a trial court exceeds its legitimate authority and abuses 
its discretion in sUbmitting special interrogatories for the jury" s determination of whether the 
victim was returned unharmed, and if so, at what juncture?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The facts of the case as put forward by the State are mostly in error and the defense will show by 

admissible evidence that in fact the "victim" and defendant were again in a romantic relationship 

and had been so for some time even attending a St. Patrick day party together where the States 

"victim"" spent much ofthe night setting on the defendants lap and making out with him. We 

will show that the "victim" was again "gas lighting" defendant and had texts and photos of 

another women that had been written and sent to the defendant by another women whom in fact 

was the "victim" playing a (head) game with him. On the night in question, she had shown him 

her phone with all this information on it. Confronting him about this girl that was in fact her! 

Defendant being a bit slow here could not understand how she got access to things that were on 

his phone and should not be on hers. It was this same type of phone nonsense that caused his 

conviction to choking her in his Maryland case. This upset is the reason for defendants "mood" 

he wanted to find out what was going on with his information being accessed by the ""victim". 

He decided to take her phone to the police or someone that could help him understand what was 

going on. He ran with the phone a got in his car to drive away and 
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she jumped in the back seat and started attacking him. Hitting kicking and biting him. Any 

injuries "victim received were the results of her own behavior. Defendant was trying to get away 

from her at a high speed and was acting in self-defense at all times. 

On September 19,2018 the Grand Jury of Jefferson County, West Virginia indicted Respondent 

on count one (1) for one count of kidnaping in violation ofW. Va. Code section 61-2-14a(a)(2), 

in count two of strangulation in violation ofW. Va. Code section 61-2-9d(b), in counts three-six 

in violation ofW. Va. Code section 61-2-9(a) of malicious assault domestic assault in count 

seven in violation of W.Va. Code section 61-2-9(b) and lastly with domestic battery in count 

eight in violation ofW. Va. Code section 61-2-28(a). App 30-34 

On January 22019, the Circuit Court held another of its now third of forth pretrial"s in this case. 

The State served Counsel with its motion for a hearing this day on the special interrogatories 

matters raised by the court by fax that counsel was pointing out he could not read the motion 

because he was driving to this hearing and therefore he was not prepared to argue the motion 

today but the court continued. App. 63 

On January 23,2019, the Circuit Court certified two questions to the Supreme Court for answer 
these questions being: 

1. Whether the trial Judge, rather than the jury, is vested with the 
authority under West Virginia Code Section 61-2-14a (b) (3) and (4), to 
determine those facts that reduce the minimum and maximum penalty of 

life imprisonment with and without mercy, for a person convicted of 
kidnaping? 2. Whether, in the absence of a constitutional requirement 
that special interrogatories be submitted to a jury in a kidnaping case, a 
trial court exceeds its legitimate authority and abuses its discretion in 

submitting special interrogatories for the jury's determination of whether 
the victim was returned unharmed, and if so, at what juncture? App.16-

19-21 
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THE RESPONDENTS SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS 

Respectfully, before the Honorable Justices of the West Virginia Supreme Court of Appeals 

comes now the Defendant Below, Respondent Daniel Scott Scruggs by Counsel Gregory V. 

Smith who says: 

That both Certified Questions should be answered "in the affirmative and found that the 

maximum and minimum penalty under WV. Code section 61-2-14a is life imprisonment without 

mercy, that the factual fmdings set forth in subsections (b) (1)-(4) serve to reduce the maximum 

and minimum sentence and do not run afoul of Alleye or Haught, and that special interrogatories 

are impermissible under WV, Code section 61-2- 14a (b)(3) and (4). 

This court held in State v. Farmer, 193 W.Va 84,85,454 S.E 2d 378,379 (1994) that the trial 

judge's factual fmdings as to bodily injury and receipt of any advantage are for the sole purpose 

of sentencing and therefore, are neither elements of the crime oflddnapping, or result in denial of 

the constitutional right to trial by jury. 

This court held in State v. Farmer, that the events in the case , .. started 
on December 9, 1991, when the appellant went to Hardees, a fast-food 
restaurant in Marmet, West Virginia, where his wife, Pauline Farmer, 
worked, to talk to her about their marital problems. When Ms. Farmer 

arrived at work with her friend, Diana Petry, the appellant, with his gun, 
demanded that 

Diana Petry and Ms. Farmer get into Diana's car. After the appellant had 
driven the car less than a block, he released Diana Petry. The appellant 

then drove Ms. Farmer to a remote cemetery in Boone County. Although 
the evidence is conflicting, there is evidence that the appellant threatened 
to kill himself and Ms. Farmer. Ms. Farmer, in an attempt to calm things 

down, told the appellant that she would reconcile with him, but she 
needed to return the car to her friend. The appellant allowed Ms. Farmer 
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to leave alone in the car. In the meantime, the Marmet police were 
informed of the situation, and they asked Arlie Sutphin, who retired from 

the Kanawha County Sheriff's Department as a jsergeant and is now 
working as a private investigator, to locate the appellant. Mr. Sutphin 

located and arrested the appellant. Eventually, the appellant was indicted 
for two counts of kidnapping and one count of aggravated robbery. The 

jury found the appellant guilty of one count of kidnapping with a 
recommendation of mercy. The jury also found the appellant guilty of 

joyriding. It is from this jury conviction and sentencing which followed 
that the appellant appeals. State v. Farmer, 193 W.Va 84,85,454 S.E 2d 

378,379 (1994) 

The appellant was indicted on two (2) counts of kidnapping and one (1) aggravated robbery. He 

was found guilty by the jury of one (1) count of kidnapping and the jury recommended mercy. 

The jury also found him guilty of the lesser included of aggravated robbery, joyriding. State v. 

Farmer, 454 S.E 2d 378 (1994) 

In Farmer the court provided what it said was a basic version of the pertinent part of the statute 

that is at issue in this appeal. The court went on to say that W.Va. Code, 61-2-14a (1965) a states 

that any person who by the use of force, threats, etc., takes. Etc., or kidnaps a person for the 

purpose of receiving a ransom, money or any concession, shall be guilty of a felony and 

imprisoned for life ( without parole eligibility-being a term of not less then twenty (20) for 

years). Also, the court pointed out that if the kidnaped person is released without bodily harm, 

but after ransom, money of some or some concession was paid or yielded the judge could impose 

a sentence not less then twenty (20) years or a sentence of not less than ten (10) years. State v. 

Farmer, 454 S.E 2d 378 (1994). 

The West Virginia Court of Appeals in Farmer citing with approval The United States Supreme 

Court in Walton v. Arizona 110 S.Ct. 3047, 11 L.Ed. 2d 511, 497 U.S. 639 (1990) holding that 

judges finding of a particular aggravating circumstance does not of its self-convict a defendant ... , 
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and the failure to find any particular ... circumstance does not "acquit" a defendant.ld. At 648, 

110 S. Ct. at 3054, 11 L. Ed. 2d at 525. Our Court holding that Because the findings of the trial 

court as to issues of harm and/or payment of ransom or something of value are made solely to 

determining the sentence to be imposed and are not elements of the crime of kidnapping, W.va. 

Const. art 111 section 10 and 14, relating to due process rights and trial by a jury are not violated. 

State v. Farmer, 454 S.E 2d 378 (1994). 

The trial court may reduce the maximum and minimum sentence of the kidnapping statute and 

not enhance it, thus not implicating the bar in, Alleyne v. United States, 570 U.S. 99 (2013), that 

facts that can increases the sentence are elements that must be proven to a jury beyond a 

reasonable doubt. 

As to Certified Question No.2 this court should answer in the affirmative and hold that pursuant 

to State v. Dilliner, 212 W.Va. 135, 136,569 S.E. 2d 211, 212 that a trial court would exceed its 

authority when it submits special interrogatories when not authorized by statute to do so. See also 

W.Va. Code sections 56-6-5 Special interrogatories authorized in civil cases. 

STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

Pursuant to Rule 20 of the rules of Appellate Procedure Defendant Below, Respondent Daniel 

Scott Scruggs by Counsel Gregory V. Smith understands that Oral Arguments are set for October 

29,2019 in this matter. 
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ARGUMENT 

l.Question: Whether the trial Judge, rather than the jury, is vested with the authority under 

West Virginia Code Section 61-2-14a (b) (3) and (4), to detennine those facts that reduce the 

minimum and maximum penalty oflife imprisonment with and without mercy, for a person 

convicted of kidnapping? 

In Apprendi v. New Jersey, 530 U.S. 466 (2000) the Supreme Court held any fact that increases 

he sentence for a crime beyond the statutory maximum must be submitted to the jury and proven 

beyond a reasonable doubt. Additional, the court had held that sixth and fourteenth Amendments 

give the defendant the right to a jury detennination of his guilt as to every element of the charged 

crime. United States v. Gaudin, 515 U.S. 506,510 (1995). 

Importantly, in 2004 the Supreme Court defmed the phrase '"statutory maximum"" for Apprendi 

purposes as the '"maximum sentence a judge may impose on the basis of the facts reflected in the 

jury verdiet or admitted by the defendant" Blakely v. Washington, 543 U.S. 294,304 (2004). 

Ruling in light of Apprendi and Blakely, the trial judge may not impose a sentence greater than 

the statutory maximum of life. 

Given that the ten (10) to thirty (30) and twenty (20) to fifty (50) year provisions are exceptions 

to the default life penalty, it is clear that the life penalty is both the minimum and maximum 

West Virginia penalty for kidnapping. Thus, it follows from a review of case law that ajury can 

reduce the maximum sentence by granting mercy without making any fmding of facts. 

Conversely, the trial court may make factual findings that but cannot find. Any fact that would 
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increase the mandatory minimum or life sentence maximum. 

2. Question: Whether, in the absence of a constitutional requirement that special interrogatories 

be submitted to a jury in a kidnaping case, a trial court exceeds its legitimate authority and abuses 

its discretion in submitting special interrogatories for the jury's determination of whether the 

victim was returned unharmed, and if so, at what juncture? 

The trial court exceeds its authority and abuses its discretion when special interrogatories are 

submitted to the jury when not authorized by statute. State v. Dilliner, 212 W.Va 135, 136,569 

S.E 2d 211,212 (2002). It is important to understand that W.Va. Code section 61-2-14a(b)(3) and 

(4) are not elements ofthe crime of Kidnaping nor do they needed to be submitted to the jury, 

they are properly determined by the trial judge at sentencing. See, State v. Boggs, 87 W.Va. 738, 

749,106 S.E. 47, 51-53 (1921), See also, State v. Greather Huntington Theater Corp., 133 

W.Va. 252, 55S.E. 2d 681 (1949) (special interrogatories will not be used in criminal cases). 

CONCLUSION 

The court should answer both questions in the affirmative and hold that the maximum and 

minimum penalty for the charge of kidnaping is life imprisonment without mercy and that the 

factual fmding by the trial court only reduce the maximum and minimum sentence and that 

special interrogatories are not permissible under W.Va. Code section 61-2-14a.